The LARP World of Joe Parzanese

1- The Murder on the PolyCon Express – written by Joe Parzanese, Aaron Kutzman, and John Hostetter and run on 2/1999 at PolyCon’s Mid Year LARP.  GMs on 2/1999 were Joe Parzanese, John Hostetter, Aaron Kutzman, Cody Hudson, Justin Smith, and Robert Berryhill. (PCE)
2- PolyConspiracy – written by Joe Parzanese and Travis Mooney and run on 2/2001 at PolyCon’s Mid Year LARP. GMs on 2/2001 were Joe Parzanese, Ryan Chapman, and Joel Butler. (PC)
3- The Vozza Legacy – written by Joe Parzanese and run on 2/2002 and 4/2002 at Dundracon and PolyCon’s Spring Minicon. GMs on 2/2002 were Joe Parzanese and Dave Kirkhart.  GMs on 4/2002 was just Joe Parzanese. (VL)
4- Nowhere, Nevada: Population 18 – written by Joe Parzanese and run on 5/2002 and 6/2002 at Kublacon and PolyCon XX. GMs on 5/2002 were Joe Parzanese and Rinley Deeds.  GMs on 6/2002 were Joe Parzanese and Matt Staley. (NN)
5- The Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition written by Joe Parzanese, Kurt Horner, and Matt Staley and run on 1/2003 and 5/2003 at PolyCon’s Winter Minicon and Kublacon. GMs on both runs were Joe Parzanese, Kurt Horner, and Matt Staley. (CVE)
6- Project Nautilus written by Joe Parzanese. Run on 6/2003 and 8/2003 at PolyCon XXI and Conquest with Rinley Deeds (and the assistance of Jef Watts at Conquest) (PN)
7- Arundel Castle written by Joe Parzanese.  With additional material for second run from Matt Staley and Kurt Horner.  Run on 2/2004 at the PolyCon’s Mid Year LARP and 2/2005 at Dundracon.  Co-GMs were Jef Watts, Rinley Deeds, Joel Schmaeman, and John Hostetter at the Mid Year.  Co-GMs were Matt Staley, Kurt Horner, and Rinley Deeds at Dundracon.  (AC)
8- Echo Valley written by Joe Parzanese.  Run on 4/2004 and 7/2004 at Kublacon and PolyCon XXII. Co-GM for 7/2004 run was Jef Watts.  Also run 7/2004 in South Africa by Katy Biden (EV)
9- Acts of Politics – written by Joe Parzanese.  Run on 10/2004 at Conquest. (AP)
10- The Butler Did It – to be run at Kublacon 5/2005.  

11- The Monster Mash –

Timeline

1142 – Sultan Nur ad-Din of Aleppo makes and gives the Maltese Poly to the Pope.  It was meant as an insult to the Pope for the recent crusade.  The Pope in his immense rage dropped the heavy figure, thus breaking his own foot.  This insult provoked the second crusade not five years later.  The Pope gave the dragon figure to an Archbishop to dispose of.  The Archbishop sold it to an emissary of a Sicilian Pirate named Roger the II.  When Roger the II was using the Norman fleets to plunder Thebes, the Maltese Poly was lost en route.  It ended up somewhere on the coast of Malta.  (PCE)
1253 – Arundel Castle is completed by the Arundel family.  (AC)
1297 – Zachary Childress, leader of the Order of the Velvet Night takes over Arundel Castle.  Through acts of deception, a druidic movement that practiced ritual sacrifice and worship of dark gods, claims the castle, while the patriarch of the castle is away.  The leader of this movement is an Englishman called Zachary Childress.  (AC)
1304 – In order to get closer to some of the dark powers that they worship, Zachary Childress opens a portal to a shadow world formed in the dungeon area of Arundel Castle, the portal surrounded by five stones.  The portal is created when Zachary Childress sacrifices Father Rodriguez Bayha.  Sadly Childress taps into power he could never have imagined and begins formulating a plan to merge the shadow world with the real world.  (AC)
1320 – Drawn by the negative energy of the place, Ari, the sea serpent, moves into the moat of Arundel Castle. (AC)
1391 – Timothy Arundel leads his men against Arundel Castle and retakes it, removing the Order of the Velvet Night’s influence.  Childress flees the castle.  (AC)
1411 – Lord Eric Arundel and Lady Tatyanna take over Arundel Castle after Timothy dies in battle (AC)
1413 – Lady Tatyanna commits suicide after Sir Victor Wellington, secretly working for Childress, returns from a battle stating that Lord Eric died.  Lord Eric leaves the field of battle to return to Arunel Castle, and confronts Victor.  An epic battle ensues wherein Eric kills Victor.  Without Lord Eric at the battle, his troops are overrun and the enemy sacks the castle killing Lord Eric. (AC)
1413 – After being sacked Arundel Castle lies vacant, but it is secretly controlled by the Order of the Velvet Night.  (AC)
1543 – William Arundel, a leader in a strange death cult, moves into Arundel Castle.  His brother Francis Arundel and their wives also move in with him.  The Arundel’s once again lay claim to the castle, but this time with much darker motives.  (AC)
1551 – the Ottoman Turks invaded Malta and in the confusion the Maltese Poly disappears. (PCE)
1562 – Jose Guerro is born in Spain.  (CVE)
1571 – William and Francis Arundel sacrifice their wives in order to cheat death.  Both begin accumulating occult knowledge in attempts to elevate themselves to a higher level a.k.a. lichdom.  (AC)
1574 – A Spanish ship arrives at the Island of Poly’Conia to colonize it and convert the natives to Catholicism.  Disaster strikes and several of the Spanish sailors are killed.  Jose Guerro, a Spanish cabin boy, is sacrificed to He’Kthlly’ck.  (CVE)
1732 – a Tibetan Monk gives the Maltese Poly to the Markhar’s of Saudi Arabia. (PCE)
1772 – the rise of Islamic Fundamentalism causes the Markhar family to lose the Maltese Poly.  (PCE)
1775 – William Arundel, seeing Francis Arundel as a threat and believing that to kill him would make him more powerful, locks his brother away forever in the basement of Arundel Castle.  Since Francis can’t die of old age or mal-nourishment, he stays in there growing bitterer every day.  William continues his studies, seeking to move onto the next level. (AC)
1777 – Mason Stockwell, the Arundel’s butler, accidentally stumbles upon Francis’s small coffin like cell.  Before the horror can leave his face, William Arundel buries an axe in the back of his skull.  (AC)
1778 – William Arundel is cursed, killed by his current wife, Regina Salitado, and becomes the Ghostly Carriage Driver, ferrying souls to their doom.   In order to escape torment in the afterlife he must ferry souls to hell, in essence becoming something like a ghost hunter.  (AC)
1800 – The Maltese Poly resurfaces with a coat of black enamel in French courts.  Black enamel statues were all the rage in France at the time.  The Poly was acquired by Napoleon Bonaparte from the Turks at the convention of El Arish, concerning the French withdrawal from Egypt.  Napoleon was very proud of the Maltese Poly and showed it off as one of his most prized possessions.  During the Battle of Waterloo, in all the confusion, Napoleon accidentally dropped it.  He was so preoccupied in looking for the Poly that he was unable to properly lead his troops.  When his army was forced to leave the battlefield, the Poly was left behind.  General von Blucher of the Prussian army discovered the Poly on the battlefield (shortly before being wounded by his own cavalry).  (PCE)
1801 – William Arundel’s first ex-wife is ferried by William into the next life. (AC)
1823 – The Hutchinson Family takes over Arundel Castle.  (AC)
1840 – William Henry Harrison is elected President.  Robert Lincoln, Abraham Lincoln's son, is born. (PC)
1841 – After delivering the longest acceptance speech ever for the presidency, William Henry Harrison comes down with pneumonia and dies a month later.  In reality, this was a manifestation of the Indian curse, laid down on Tippercanoe.  The curse continued to manifest itself inside the body or Robert Lincoln, the man who would strike forth with the Indian retribution for generations to come. (PC)
1852 – Francis Arundel’s ex-wife is ferried by William Arundel into the next life.  (AC)
1853 – Marie Vozza, daughter of Sir Francis Vozza, is born. (VL)
1856 – Michael Vozza, Senior, son of Sir Francis Vozza, is born. (VL)
1857 – The Maltese Poly is given to the Americans by the Germans as a peace gift. (PCE)
1858 – Jed Vozza, another son of Sir Francis Vozza, is born. (VL, AC)

1860 – Abraham Lincoln becomes President.  A man from South Carolina steals the Maltese Poly and hides under the protection of the local state government.  When Lincoln demanded that the Maltese Poly be returned to the country’s capital where the national treasure rightly belonged, South Carolina succeeded from the United States, publicly announcing that they were protesting Abraham Lincoln.  (PCE)

1861 – Other Southern states believing that South Carolina was succeeding over slavery followed and left the Union as well.  A Civil War between the two later happened.  In the end, the northern states defeats the southern states, and Abraham Lincoln reclaims the Maltese Poly. (PCE)

1865 – While Abraham Lincoln at Ford’s Theater was showing off the Maltese Poly, after just having reclaimed it after the Civil War, he was shot by a man called John Wilkes Booth.  Booth, of course, made off with the priceless statue.  John Wilkes Booth was secretly working for Robert Lincoln in a grandiose conspiracy involving the Confederates and the Catholic Church.  Boston Corbitt, a holy avenger and demon hunter of the Catholic Church shot Booth while he was attempting to escape.  However, since Booth was a vampire, he managed to escape alive, but without the Maltese Poly.  (PCE, PC)

1868 – Boston Corbitt unearths John Wilkes Booth’s grave and chops off the body's head. The body was not Booth's, however. (PC)
1869 – Andrew Johnson unearths John Wilkes Booth's grave and finds the head chopped off. (PC)
1870 – Robert E. Lee fakes his own death and retreats underground to the secret Confederate base under Arlington Cemetery. The Confederate scientists use steam-punk technology to augment Lee and keep him alive in his old age. (PC)
1875 – Boston Corbitt and the Catholic Church attempt to hunt down the vampire known as John Wilkes Booth. (PC)
1881 – With an English ship off shore, the volcano on the Island of Poly’Conia erupts destroying most of the native civilization on the island.  Jose Guerro manifests as a ghost.  Nathan Gator’s grandfather, Sydney Gator, acquires the Pendant of He’Kthlly’ck.  (CVE)

1881 – James Garfield, believing that his life is in danger summons Robert Lincoln to the White House to discuss the death of his father, Abraham Lincoln.  Shortly after Garfield dies in a conspiracy involving Robert Lincoln, doctors, and the Catholic Church. (PC)

1886 – Michael Vozza, Junior, son of Michael Vozza and Shannon La Bue, is born.  (VL)
1887 – Boston Corbitt, is placed in an insane asylum. (PC)
1887 – Kristian Vozza, son of Michael Vozza and Shannon La Bue, is born.  (VL)
1888 – Boston Corbitt escapes from the insane asylum. (PC)
1888 – Duke Albert Hutchinson as a result of his involvement with the Masons and disagreements about events in White Chapel is killed by Jack the Ripper.  After three murders had happened in White Chapel, he began to question the Mason’s actions.  He and his wife, Vivian Hutchinson, are killed and silenced.  (AC)
1889 – Vozza Family purchases Arundel castle.  (AC)
1890 – Regina Vozza, daughter of Michael Vozza and Shannon La Bue, is born.  (VL)
1890 – John Wilkes Booth, vampire extraordinare, finally tracks down Boston Corbitt, a soldier in the Catholic Church's army, and kills him. (PC)
1893 – After her child Steven Vozza dies in childbirth, Shannon La Bue Vozza commits suicide by throwing herself off the top story of the Vozza Estate.  In reality, Michael Vozza fed the child, Steven, to his pet demon in return for the secret of immortality.  (VL)

1899 – George Mason is born. (CVE, AC)
1901 – An anarchist hired by Robert Lincoln shoots William McKinley at a train station in Buffalo, NY.  Robert Lincoln arrives on the next train to view his handiwork. The entire assassination involved a conspiracy concerning anarchists, Lincoln, and Teddy Roosevelt. (PC)

1907 – Charles Bradfield, husband of Michelle Bradfield, dies. (PCE)

1908 – Kristian Vozza and Heather Murphy are married in an arranged marriage between the two dark families.  (VL, AC)
1910 – The Carleth Expedition disappears in search of the Island of the Poly’Conia.  No one on the expedition ever returns.  Andrew Carleth is possessed by He’Kthlly’ck and kills his entire expedition.  (CVE)

1912 – The Titanic sinks, taking with it a fake Maltese Poly.  Richard Isaac Prescott and Michelle Bradfield are among the survivors.  (PCE)

1914 – James Paris and Mr. Guttman both try to kill Archduke Francis Ferdinand.  Guttman wins and the Great War begins.  Gavrilo Prinzip, the assassin hired by Mr. Guttman makes off with the Maltese Poly, but loses it in the ensuing chaos before being able to return it to Mr. Guttman.  (PCE, PN)

1916 – Russia’s first attempt at making a programmed assassin, Eddie Harrison, fails.  Mr. Harrison escapes thanks to Segei Ramius but do to drugs remembers very little of the ordeal.  (PCE)
1921 – Mr. Guttman tracks down the Maltese Poly to Adolph Hitler.  Adolph Hitler had discovered the Maltese Poly during the Great War.  During their meeting, he discovers that the Poly has been sold already.  Mr. Guttman also convinces Mr. Hitler to go into politics.  (PCE, PN, AC)

1923 – As a result of scandal in the White House and rumors spread by the still alive Robert Lincoln, Warren G. Harding's wife poisons the president. (PC)
1925 – Michelle Bradfield and Eddie Harrison’s plane crashes into the jungle. (PCE)

1926 – Amy Wentworth and Roger Stroud team up to look for the Maltese Poly. (PCE)

1927 – May – Roger Stroud loses a finger to Larry Sommersby in a bad bet and is then killed by James Paris after being tortured.  James Paris now has newfound information about the location of the Maltese Poly.  (PCE)

1927 – June – Father Jacob Mayhew buries Roger Stroud.  Richard Isaac Prescott meets Jacquelyn and falls in love.  Harry Houdini and Richard Isaac Prescott celebrate and remember their dead friend, Roger Stroud.  During the celebration, Richard has a bit too much to drink and while driving home, runs over Father Jacob Mayhew’s sister and mother.  (PCE)

1928 – April – Richard Isaac Prescott, after having been with Jacquelyn for some time borrows money from Vito Sabatelli and takes off suddenly to search for the Maltese Poly.  (PCE)

1928 – May – Father Jacob Mayhew leaves Dover in pursuit of Richard Isaac Prescott.  Vito Sabatelli visits Jacquelyn looking for the money that Richard borrowed.  (PCE)

1928 – June – Lady Green, the wife of Roger Stroud, decides to take up his search for the mysterious statue, the Maltese Poly.  She drags her maid, Jacquelyn, along with her.  (PCE)

1928 – July – Miss Scarlet Bently, the daughter of the Earl of Soffolk, John Bently (and the British ambassador to Turkey), goes on vacation.  She is instantly kidnapped by the Russians and brain washed through drugs and hypnotism into becoming the perfect assassin in Operation Ocelot.  (PCE)

1928 – September – A rich Beijing landowner dies mysteriously. In his will he donates all of his treasures to a Frenchmen named Louis Mouat. Louis plans on auctioning it all off and with the proceeds build an art museum in Paris. Sam Valentino, a conman, who had been working for the Beijing landowner creates a fake Maltese Poly. Through a variety of clues and coincidence all treasure hunters searching for the Maltese Poly begin traveling to Istanbul.  (PCE)

1928 – October – while seducing a young attaché of an American ambassador to China, Richard Isaac Prescott discovers that the Senator from Mississippi and Harriet Rockefeller had been engaging in illegal business practices for which the senator was receiving pay offs.  Richard needing more money, the money borrowed from Vito Sabatelli having run out, begins to blackmail the Senator, Matthew Pokorny.  (PCE)

1928 – November – Vic Winston, husband to Marie Vozza, dies by driving over the side of a cliff.  The death was labeled either a suicide or an accident due to drunk driving.  In reality, Marie sliced his head open with a meat cleaver and then made his death look like an accident.  (VL)

1928 – December – Senator Matthew Pokorny, tired of being blackmailed, hires an assassin to kill Richard Isaac Prescott.  The attempt fails and Richard hires the master secret spy, “Gabriel” to discover who hired the assassin.  (PCE)

1929 – January – Scarlet Bently is re-assimilated with her father, John Bently.  Leon Trotsky flees from Russia.  Sergei Ramius defects shortly afterwards with the plans to Operation Ocelot.  “Gabriel” is hired to assist the defector, Ramius, escape to Great Britain.  (PCE)

1929 – February – Murder on the PolyCon Express.  Richard Isaac Prescott dies “mysteriously” by being both poisoned and stabbed.  Gabriel dies, the plans for Operation Ocelot are lost, and the British ambassador to Turkey, John Bently, dies on the PolyCon Express.  Several other deaths occur.  Mr. Guttman acquires the plans to Operation Ocelot.  The Maltese Poly is presumed destroyed.  (PCE)
1929 – June – Gabriel’s daughter assumes the spy’s mantle.  (PN)

1931 – Lulano and Himehumi force Inuli to be exiled from their tribe.  (CVE)

1933 – February – Michael Vozza, Senior dies in an explosion at one of his factories.  Michael Vozza, Junior and Jed Vozza rigged the explosion.  (VL)

1933 – June – Sally Winston dies in a house fire.  In reality, her maid dies in the fire and is mistaken as Sally.  Kristian Vozza set the fire.  (VL)

1934 – June 30 – July 2 – Night of Long Knives happens in Germany as the SS and Adolph Hitler arrest and execute the SA.  (PN)
1934 – July 22 – The Bureau of Investigators as a result of orders from J. Edgar Hoover guns down John Dillenger. Unknown to Hoover, Dillenger faked his own death and later re-appears as Jimmy Hoffa. (PC)
1934 – August – German President, Paul von Hindenburg, passes away.  An election was held shortly afterward in which the German population with a 90 percent “Yes” vote elects Hitler. (PN)
1934 – October – King Alexander of Yugoslavia arrived in France for a state visit on the 9th. While traveling in a motorcade with French Foreign Minister Louis Barthou, he and the minister were killed by a Croatian assassin who was secretly created by Operation Ocelot.  The Germans hired Mr. Guttman to handle the assassination.  (PN)
1934 – November – Mr. Guttman and James Paris arrange for special plans for a new fuel to be stolen from the Oil Barons of Saudi Arabia.  Gabriel is immediately hired by the barons to recover the missing plans.  (PN)
1934 – December – Several German spies are caught in the United States trying to steal plans to a special propulsion unit. (PN)
1934 – December – Project Nautilus
1935 – February – Kristian Vozza ends up in a car accident and falls into a comma.  (VL)

1935 – February – The Vozza Legacy – Michael Vozza Jr and Michael Vozza III make off with the safe containing the family’s demon.  Marie Vozza is killed by her son.  Jed Vozza becomes immortal.   Heather Murphy acquires land, money, and property of the Vozza family.  Michael Vozza Senior’s soul ends up in a squirrel.  Kristian Vozza dies.  

1935 – July – Heather Vozza sells Arundel Castle to Kenneth Sommersby.  (AC)
1936 – May – The Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition.  

1936 – May – Amy Wentworth arrives on the Island of Poly’Conia. (CVE)

1936 – July – Marcy Sommersby commits suicide.  In reality she is killed by her husband, Kenneth Sommersby, and his mistress, Heather Vozza.  (AC)
1936 – September – Kenneth Sommersby and Heather Vozza get married.  (AC)

1936 – December – Kenneth Sommersby dies of an apparent heart attack, that is really brought on by poison placed in his food by his darling wife, Heather Vozza.  (AC)

1937 – Heather Vozza stumbles upon the portal to the shadow world inside Arundel Castle and is decimated by it, turned into a ghost herself.  (AC)
1944 – During an attempt to merge Arundel Castle with the shadow world, the castle is temporarily transported to France. Lawrence Hayes and his troop of soldiers hole up in the castle and die as a result of Hayes’s cowardice. Captain Heinrich Schultz commands the German soldiers that storm the castle.  (AC)
1945 – Franklin Delanor Roosevelt is exposed to a rare experimental disease and dies. (PC)
1947 – July – Roswellian aliens arrive on Earth. Roswellians are strange aliens from the planet Roswell and they landed in Roswell, New Mexico. Their navigator was drunk on Roswellian ale and got confused when the ship’s computer gave him two possible Roswell locations. (NN, PC)

1948 – Elvis is abducted by the Roswellian aliens and replaced.  (PC)
1948 – The Brazilian 4th Reich is formed. (PC)
1948 – Arundel Castle is retaken by Zachary Childress and the Order of Velvet Night.  The druids begin gathering items of power for use with the shadow portal.  (AC)
1950 – August – Hormelians, a strange, hungry race of aliens arrive on Earth from the planet Hormel. (NN, PC)
1951 – The National Order to Colonize (NOTC) is formed by the Roswellians. The Hormelians are forced to join. The NOTC's goals involve colonization of Earth for use by the alien races. (PC, NN)
1951 – William Randolph Hearst fakes his own death and retreats to the sublevels of Hearst Castle to rule over his media domain. (PC)
1952 – The Maltese Poly is brought by the Order of the Velvet Night to Arundel Castle.  Casper Guttman and James Paris, of course follow.  James Paris kills Mr. Guttman over the Maltese Poly, but is hunted down by the Order and killed.  (AC)
1954 – Trifids, an alien race of plants, fly out of a wormhole and crash on Earth. Two ships crashed. One lands near Nowhere, Nevada, the only survivors are strange round plant carnivorous plant creatures. The government takes them and sets up a science research facility. The other ship lands with twelve trifid soldiers who send out a distress signal to their home world, many many galaxies away. (NN)
1957 – September – the Order of Velvet Night brings the Orb of Vilaktova to Arundel Castle.  (AC)
1957 – October – Nowhere, Nevada: Population 18 

1957 – October – Sputnik is launched.

1958 – May – The Butler Did It
1960 - Members of Rodentius Smartamus Maximus take over and assimilate Fidel Castro. (PC)
1961 – Bay of Pigs Invasion, Rodentius Smartamus Maximus assimilate Richard Nixon and Barry Goldwater. (PC)
1961 – Order of Velvet Night acquire the Pendant of Poly’Conia.  (AC)
1962 – Cuban Missile Crisis.

1963 – Marilyn Monroe dies when several members of Hollywood steal her unborn baby. (PC)
1963 – JFK is killed in Delaney Plaza. (PC)
1964 – February – PolyConspiracy
1969 – The Bezeor of a Shoggoth is brought to Arundel Castle by the Order of Velvet Night.  (AC)
1973 – The Lost Idol of Shum’bu’lala is found by the Order of Velvet Night.  (AC)
1974 – Zachary Childress is banished to the shadow world by Randolph Matigan.  

Arundel Castle is magically transported to Upstate New York during Childress’s ritual when it slid partially into the shadow world.  Randolph Matigan takes over Arundel castle.  (AC)
1975 – Stephen Catalano is in a horrible car crash and goes blind, but gains the power to see into the spirit world.  (AC)
1975 – Heinrich Schultz attempts to visit Arundel Castle in England, but finds it missing. The shock and confusion does little good for the man’s health. Soon thereafter, members of his family involuntarily commit Heinrich to an asylum.  (AC)
1982 – February – PolyConspiracy 2
1993 – Jennifer Murphy is killed by Mace Kruegar during one of the Order of the Velvet Night’s rituals.  (AC)
1995 – Vivian Hutchinson, the dead wife of Albert Hutchinson is also ferried into the next life by William Arundel.  (AC)
1998 – Kris Schultz, New York stockbroker and grandchild of Heinrich Schultz, transfers Heinrich to an upstate New York mental hospital. Heinrich, now 98, clings to life, hoping that someone will vindicate him. (AC)
2002 – Stephen Kodenburg’s books about a serial killer are turned into a major blockbuster movie.  It grosses hundreds of millions. (EV)
2003 – Stephen Kodenburg goes insane and mostly catatonic as a result of a serial killer copying his books.  He is committed to the White Mental Institute in New York. (EV)
2004 – January - Randolph Matigan attempts to permanently close the shadow portal inside Arundel Castle, but accidentally releases Childress who strikes him down.  (AC)
2004 – February – Francis Arundel is released from his cell inside Arundel Castle by Simone Trasker.  (AC)

2004 – February 7 – Arundel Castle
2004 – May – Echo Valley
Who’s Who in the LARP World of Joe Parzanese

(Many of these were actual player characters – ones with stars were NPC’s detailed in the back history or appearing as cut outs in the game – ones with pounds signs in front of them are fictional characters in the world)

6 of 7 – 6 of 7 is the 6th attempt out of seven to clone Adolph Hitler.  The 6th attempt was imperfect in that despite the fact that he looked exactly like Hitler, his personality and mentality were nothing like the real Adolph Hitler.  Often seen in jams, sandals, and a Hawaiian shirt, 6 of 7 enjoyed being part of the Brazilian 4th Reich because they were working on going to the moon, and he liked outer space.  Internally, 6 of 7’s organs were all messed up as well, with organs being in places where they shouldn’t have been.  6 of 7 also enjoyed the fact that he got lots of “Nazi Chicks” because they all wanted to be with him because he looked like the original.  (PC) 

* Aldrich, Eric – the supposed identity of the man on the grassy knoll.  In Illuminati circles he is called the “Aldrich Shooter” and is rumored to have some mental powers. (PC) 
Arak Nos'pk'wa – a Hormelian alien sent to Nowhere, Nevada in 1957 to retrieve special alien plant creatures from the military research center there.  (NN)
* Ari – the sea serpent of Arundel Castle.  (AC)
Arundel, Lord Eric – the former owner of Arundel Castle.  He dies in battle cut down by enemy soldiers.  Due to treachery from Sir Victor Wellington, Lord Eric was forced to leave the field of battle and was unable to lead his troops properly.  After returning to Arundel castle and discovering the Lady Tatyanna dashed on the rocks in the moat, he slew Sir Victor, but was sadly cut down by the hoards of invading knights in the year 1413.  (AC)
Arundel, Francis – brother to William Arundel, he was imprisoned in the basement of Arundel Castle for over 200 years as a result of William’s fear of him.  (AC)
Arundel, Patricia – descendant of William Arundel and Regina Salitado. (AC)
* Arundel, Timothy – father to Lord Eric.  Lord Timothy chases the Order of the Velvet Night out of Arundel Castle, thus reclaiming it for the family.  (AC)
Arundel, William - the ghostly carriage driver, a former death cultist, and a very evil, very spooky ghost.  In 1778, after being cursed and killed by his current wife, William made a pact with Hell allowing him ferry souls to Hell in order to avoid being doomed to be there.  (AC)
August, Daniel – lawyer for the law firm, August and Howards, a law firm that deals primarily with supernatural and occult clients.  (AC)
Augustine, Pierre – a professor of psychoanalysis who was aboard the PolyCon Express in 1929.  He sold the Maltese Poly to Lady Green for one million pounds.  (PCE)
# Baldwin, Patrick – Hollywood director and secretly in love with the producer’s wife.  He was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Bayha, Padre Rodriguez – devout Catholic priest who was sacrificed in 1304 by Zachary Childress and the Order of the Velvet Night.  He possessed someone in 2004 and helped right the wrongs that his sacrifice started.  (AC)
Bently, John – the Earl of Soffolk and ambassador from Britain to Turkey.  In 1929, while on the PolyCon Express he discovers that his daughter, Scarlet, has been hypnotized by the Russians into being their perfect assassin.  An NKVD agent, Ivana Sikorsky, kills him shortly after.  (PCE)

Bently, Major T – Major in the Unites States army stationed in Nowhere, Nevada.  In 1957, a Hormelian named Arak Nos’pk’wa consumes him and takes on his form. (NN) 

Bently, Scarlet – the daughter of the British ambassador to Turkey, in 1928 Scarlet is hypnotized by a Russian hypnotist named Geoffrey Da’Grand into being the perfect assassin.  In 1929, while traveling back to Britain on the PolyCon Express, her identity as the perfect assassin is discovered, and she is violently killed by Sergei Ramius, a Russian defector.  (PCE)

Bic, Jerry – American FBI counter intelligence agent in the 1930s. (PN)
Bismarck, Oberst Willhelm – rich German railway tycoon who in 1929 owns the PolyCon Express.  (PCE)

Booth, John Wilkes – vampire extraordinaire.  Booth, was hired by the Confederates to take out Abraham Lincoln.  Later when he discovered that an entire posse being led by the demon hunter, Boston Corbitt, pursued him; he realized that the Confederates, the Catholic Church, and Robert Lincoln had stabbed him in the back.  Eventually he escaped, but one man kept pursuing him, Corbitt, the Holy Avenger.  As time passed by, he managed to kill Corbitt and learn the names of several people who had betrayed him.  He arrived in 1964 at a secret illuminati meeting disguised as Dean Martin to get his revenge.  Sadly John Connelly and Saint Peter staked him.  (PC)
Bradfield, Michelle – rich woman who has suffered catastrophes while sailing (the Titanic in 1912), flying (with Eddie Harrison in 1925), and aboard trains (the PolyCon Express in 1929).  (PCE)
Camaratta, Michael – a mobster who works for the Gubatosi family.  He was sent to the PolyCon Express in 1929 to shake down Oberst Willhelm Bismarck.  Eddie Harrison killed him on the train, while he was trying to recover the secret of how to create programmed assassins.  (PCE)

Carleth, Andrew – archaeologist who went in 1910 to search for the Island of Poly’Conia.  Upon arriving he was possessed by He’Kthlly’ck and killed his entire expedition.  He has one child, Chris Carleth.  He dies in 1936 in either a volcanic explosion or at the hands of Inuli.  (CVE)
Carleth, Chris – an archaeologist who organized the 1936 Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition to the lost Island of Poly’Conia with the purpose of finding his lost father, Andrew Carleth.  (CVE)
Carmondy, Francis – the lawyer for the Vozza family.  In 1933 he begins having an affair with Heather Vozza, the wife of his employer.  In 1935, after the death of her husband, Kristian, he switches the family will and leaves all the money and estate to her.  The two then run off together.  Heather leaves him shortly thereafter.   (VL)

Castro, Fidel – dictator of Cuba, Fidel until 1964 was in charge of La Priore de Sion, an illuminati originally started by a Templar movement.  He was taken over by the Rodentius Smartamus Maximus and controlled by one of their rat agents.  Robert E. Lee shot him at a secret illuminati meeting, blowing his head off after Fidel had launched nuclear missiles at the United States.  Shortly after, a new Castro appeared in Cuba running the island.  No one knows where this one came from.  (PC)
Catalano, Stephen – a blind man who can see into the spirit world.  He has a “seeing eye ghost” named Jennifer Murphy.  (AC)
Chambers – once Alex Vandenberg's large butler, this master of pugilism and fisticuffs breaks his ties to his employer in the last half of 1936 after Vandenberg loses all of his money funding the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition.  (CVE)
Childress, Zachary – leader of the Order of the Velvet Night, he opened the shadow portal in Arundel Castle in 1304.  In 1974 he is banished in the shadow world, but returns in 2004 to attempt the merger of the two worlds.  (AC)
Christie, Agatha – famous mystery writer of the 20s.  She was aboard the PolyCon Express in 1929.  (PCE)
The Coachman – see William Arundel.  

Connelly, John – the governor of Texas, Connelly rode along in the motorcade with John F. Kennedy.  He was injured in the assassination of the President, but because he is an alien plant creature called a Trifid, he survived with minimal damage.  In 1964, at a secret illuminati meeting, he was mistaken for a vampire multiple times.  Connelly is also a member of La Priore de Sion.  (PC)

* Corbitt, Boston – a demon hunter and holy avenger of the Catholic Church, Corbitt tried to kill the vampire, John Wilkes Booth after the vampire was set up by the Catholic Church.  Believing him dead after the incident, Corbitt eventually went to the gravesite to make sure and decapitated the body within.  Upon discovering that Booth was not dead, he began to track the vampire in a deadly game of cat and mouse, which the vampire eventually won, much to the dismay of Corbitt.  (PC) 
* Crawford, Lynden John – an assassin sent in December 1928 by Senator Matthew Pokorny to kill Richard Isaac Prescott.  He fails though.  (PCE) 
Davis, Sammy Jr. – entertainer and part of the Rat Pack.  Davis, helped out several Hollywood stars steal the unborn baby of Marilyn Monroe in late 1963.  He plans on making it his “son” and turning it into one of the best actors of his time.  (PC)
DaGrand, Geoffrey – a Russian hypnotist who in the 20s was working on creating programmed assassins.  Eddie Harrison, one of his former experiments, killed him in 1929 aboard the PolyCon Express.  (PCE)
# Day, Simon – “The Snowman”, a serial killer who kills people with icicles and buries them in snow banks or under snowmen.  He believed that he was contacted by god and was trying to keep Stephen Kodenburg’s delusional world secure.  He was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Dillenger, John – Rumored to have been killed by agents of J. Edgar Hoover, John Dillinger created for himself the new identity of Jimmy Hoffa.  He took over the La Cosa Nostra illuminati and tried to save JFK in Delaney Plaza.  (PC)
Feedolu, Sutliu – a Roswellian alien sent to Nowhere, Nevada in 1957 to destroy several Trifid alien plant creatures.  (NN)
Ferguson, John – crypto zoologists who is constantly looking for mythological beasts including Ari, the sea serpent. He is sacrificed by Mace Kruegar in 2004 (??). (AC)
Fillmore, Dr. Barry – British scientists who is forced to work on Project Nautilus by the German SS. (PN)
* Fillmore, Jenny – daughter of Dr. Barry Fillmore and used as a hostage by the German’s in order to make Dr. Fillmore do their work on Project Nautilus.   (PN)
Gabor, Zsa Zsa – Russian KGB agent and also a member of the Global Intelligence Community.  Zsa Zsa, tried to fluoridate the United States in the 60s.  (PC)
Gabriel – a freelance secret agent who was working for both Leon Trotsky and Richard Isaac Prescott in 1929 aboard the PolyCon Express.  Geoffrey DaGrand, Ivana Sikorsky, and several others kill him.  (PCE)
Gabriel 2 – child of the original Gabriel. She is killed in 1934 by a Anya Grahazni who was jealous that Gabriel got between her and James Stock or alternately killed by several super spies while stopping the Germans from building a doomsday device. (PN)
Galan, Jaime – see Sally Winston.  

Ganeire, Eugene – Eugene was the Sea Wolf’s engineer in 1936.  While transporting the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition to the Island of Poly’Conia he became a follower of He’Kthlly’ck and crashed the ship off the coast of the island.  He is killed by the 1st Mate while on the island.  (CVE)
Garrison, James – see Robert Lincoln.  

Gator, Nathan – Nathan is the Sea Wolf’s navigator in 1936.  A few years earlier he came into possession of the Pendant of He’Kthlly’ck, but loses it after the Sea Wolf transports the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition to the Island of Poly’Conia.  (CVE)
Goldwater, Barry – a member of the Discordians and a politician, Goldwater was the unfortunate victim of the rats of the Rodentius Smartamus Maximus, who took control of him in the 60s.  (PC)
Grahazni, Anya – NKVD super agent for Russia.  (PN)
Green, Lady – former wife to Roger Stroud, the Lady Green destroys what is believed to be the one true Maltese Poly by in 1929 tossing it into the furnace aboard the PolyCon Express.  Her maid is Jacquelyn.  (PCE)
* Gubatosi – an Italian family from Sicily that handles mob affairs. Vito Sabatelli and Michael Camaratta both work for the family in 1929.  Vince Sambacticato works for the family in 2004.  (PCE) 

Guerra, Jose – born in 1562, Jose eventually becomes the cabin boy of a Spanish ship that went to the Island of Poly’Conia in 1574 to colonize the island and convert the natives to Catholicism.  The natives don’t take to kindly to this and begin killing off the Spanish.  They capture Jose and sacrifice him to He’Kthlly’ck by throwing him in the volcano. In 1881 as a result of the volcano erupting, Jose’s bones are thrown out of the volcano to lie on the side of the island.  Jose manifests as a ghost.  Despite being present for both the Carleth Expedition and the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition, he has still not been laid to rest and haunts the island now.  Andrew Carleth threw his bones back in the volcano.  (CVE)
Guttman, Casper Frank – see Mr. Guttman.  

Guttman, Mr. – one of the most notorious people the world has ever known.  A mobster and avid Maltese Poly hunter, Mr. Guttman has performed countless atrocities trying to obtain the rare treasure.  This has included the death of Archduke Francis Ferdinand and the resulting Great War.  Although the statue has always eluded him, while aboard the PolyCon Express in 1929 acquired the top-secret plans to the Russian plot: Operation Ocelot. Later he sold programmed assassins to world leaders for assassination jobs.  He finally found the Maltese Poly in Arundel Castle, but was sadly betrayed by James Paris who brutally killed him.  He roamed the halls of the castle as a ghost until 2004 when the Maltese Poly was thrown into the shadow world (or blown away by machine gun bullets) thus ending its existence and allowing Mr. Guttman to finally rest in peace.  (PCE, PN, AC)
# Hamilton, Nikali – Hollywood producer and married to a famous actress.  He was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
# Hansford, Charlie – mechanical engineer student who was hiking when the storm hit.  Trying to save his girlfriend who was injured during an avalanche.  He was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Harrison, Eddie – ex Great War pilot.  He was captured by the Russians during the war while they attempted to brain wash him.  Sergei Ramius helped him escape.  He boarded the PolyCon Express in 1929 and attempted to help Ramius and the British against the Russians.  Sadly he was killed by a gunshot from Geoffrey DaGrand.  (PCE)
Hawke, Volcar – leader of the SS in charge of Project Nautilus.  He also played a crucial role in the Night of Long Knives.  He was killed by secret agents while attempting to build a German doomsday device.   (PN)
Hayes, Lawrence – British soldier in World War II fighting in France.  Due to his cowardice, his entire squad while held up inside Arundel Castle in 1944 is killed by Germans, the captain of the German squad being Heinrich Schultz.  Lawrence becomes a ghost stuck in the castle. (AC)
Hayes, Nikki – great niece of Lawrence Hayes and auctioneer during the Auction of Randolph Matigan at Arundel Castle.  (AC)
Hearst, William Randolph – the media lord who faked his own death and retreated beneath Hearst Castle to run his media empire.  (PC) 

Heilman, Frans – in 1929, Frans is the conductor on the PolyCon Express. (PCE)
Heinrich – One of the German Brute Squad assigned to Project Nautilus in the 30s.  (PN)

* He’Kthlly’ck – dark god, thought to be a volcano god.  He’Kthlly’ck fought a large battle with Stro’Bythrck and upon losing fell down to the ocean and was chained there as an island.  It is trying to regain its lost power, but complications keep arising.  (CVE) 
Hepburn, Audrey – actress who is part of Priore de Sion.  She helps other members of Hollywood steal the unborn baby of Marilyn Monroe. (PC)
Himehumi – The Son of the Chief of a Polynesian island of cannibals in the pacific. In 1931, he hated Inuli, the then current shaman of the tribe and organized Lulano’s rise to the Head Shaman position. (CVE)
Hoffa, Jimmy – see John Dillenger.

Holmstrand, Doctor Jennifer – a doctor who was aboard the PolyCon Express in 1929.  She usually lives in Dover and knows Lady Green, Richard Isaac Prescott, and the rest of the Dover people.  (PCE)
Hoover, J Edgar – Head of the FBI and the Global Intelligence Community.  (PC)
Hope, Bob – A Roswellian alien who works for the Russians.  In 1964, Hope is gunned down by Teddy Kennedy, but because of his vital position later replaced by another alien.  (PC)
Houdini, Harry – an escape artist from the 20s and 30s who use to live in Dover.  He was friends with Richard Isaac Prescott and Roger Stroud.  In 1929, while aboard the PolyCon Express, he accidentally discovers the Maltese Poly in the baggage car and trades it to Pierre Augustine for the secrets to his greatest trick.  (PCE)
Howards, Josephine – one of the two occult lawyers in August and Howards, a law firm that handles almost completely occult and supernatural clients.  (AC)
Hughes, Howard – insane aviator who worked for the Global Intelligence Community.  In 1964 he obtained some information about Hormelian attack ships.  (PC)
Hutchinson, Duke Albert – lived in Arundel Castle, killed in 1888 by Jack the Ripper when as a former Mason he disagreed with the actions occurring at the time in White Chapel. Resides as a ghost inside the castle.  (AC)
* Hutchinson, Vivian – wife of Duke Albert Hutchinson.  She is also killed by Jack the Ripper in 1888.  In 1995 her spirit is ferried off to Hell by the ghostly coachman. (AC)
Hutchinson, Winston – member of the Order of the Velvet Night.  Descendant of Duke Albert Hutchinson.  Along with Mace Krueger kills Jennifer Murphy to perform a strange ritual.  (AC)
Inuli – The deposed Shaman of Stro’Bythrck who seeks revenge against his deposers.  He was deposed in 1931, and in 1936 came to the Island of Poly’Conia to perform a ritual to siphon off He’Kthlly’ck’s power and give it to Stro’Bythrck.  (CVE)
Jacquelyn (Jackie) – the maid to Lady Green.  From 1927 to 1928 she was dating and very much in love with Richard Isaac Prescott.  In 1929, while aboard the PolyCon Express, she was to marry him, but sadly he was poisoned and knifed before hand.  (PCE)
# Jones, Sam – local hunter who is helping the Old Wise Indian.  He was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Kaufman, Herman – see Sergei Ramius.

Kaufman, Luther – see Dimitri Vilakova.

Kennedy, Bobby – In 1961, the Roswellian aliens tried to replace Bobby, but failed.  Instead Kennedy replaced the replacement using special CIA and FBI technology and learned the horrors of what the aliens were actually doing here on Earth.  Before he could move against them, a secret Illuminati meeting occurred in 1964 in which he was shot and killed by La Cosa Nostra.  The aliens realizing that Bobby had not been an alien, immediately rectified their mistake and sent in a Roswellian alien posing as Kennedy.  Before he died, Kennedy conceived a child with Marilyn Monroe.  (PC)
* Kennedy, John F – President of theUnited States who died in 1963 from a plot involving Robert Lincoln, the Communist party, and the Discordians.  (PC) 
Kennedy, Teddy – Brother to JFK, Teddy is also part of the Discordians although he was not involved in the death of his brother in 1963.  (PC)
Kent, Michael – see Gabriel.  

Kodenburg, Stephen – world famous writer who went insane after someone copied his serial killer novel.  In 2004 he lies catatonic in an asylum residing in a world within his mind. (EV)
Kruegar, Mace – member of the Order of Velvet Night and leader of the movement during the absence of Zachary Childress.  (AC)
* La Bue, Shannon – Michael Vozza, Senior’s wife.  She commits suicide in 1893 shortly after the death of her newborn baby boy.  Sally Winston later finds her journal. (VL) 
# LaDuque, Jenny – ambulance driver who got stuck in the storm while hiking.  Trying to save her best friend who was injured during an avalanche.   She was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Lee, General Robert E. – The Confederate General who fought in the Civil War, who helped Robert Lincoln assassinate Abraham Lincoln, faked his death in the late 1860s.  Afterwards, he went about building a secret Confederate base under Arlington cemetery.  The Confederates acquired a lot of steam punk technology and augmented Lee with increased strength, brain capacity, and other features.  They also prolonged his life and in 1964 he attended a secret illuminati meeting.  (PC)
Legstrum, Lacy – FBI counter intelligence agent and also a mob informant.  (PN)

* Lincoln, Abraham – President of the United States during the Civil War.  He was killed in a conspiracy involving the Confederates, the Catholic Church, and even his own son, Robert.  (PC) 
Lincoln, Robert – Lincoln is the manifestation of the Indian curse of 1840.  He has been responsible for the death of every President elected in a “zero” year since his father Abraham Lincoln.  In 1964, he appeared at a secret illuminati meeting as James Garrison, the district attorney for Texas.  Later he will put several of his fellow Discordians on trial for the death of JFK, thereby covering up his tracks.  The Indian curse sustains him and keeps him alive long after he should have died.  (PC)
Luban, Dr. H – a megalomaniacal scientist who learned how the alien carnivorous plant creatures reproduce.  In 1957, he captured one and was planning on raising an army of them to take over the world, but was shot by the Roswellian, Sutliu Feedolu, when it mistakenly thought that the doctor was a Hormelian. (NN)
Lulano – The Shaman of an island in the Polynesian and initiate of Stro’Bythrck. He came to be Head Shaman by deposing Inuli in 1931.  In 1936 he tried, unsuccessfully, to perform a ritual that would siphon He’Kthlly’ck’s power and give it to Stro’Bythrck. (CVE)
MacWilliams, David – quirky, rude, eccentric butler to Randolph Matigan in Arundel Castle from the late seventies to 2004.  (AC)
Markhar, Faysal – an Arabian sheik who’s family use to own the Maltese Poly.  On the PolyCon Express in 1929, Faysal arranged to purchase a fake version of the Maltese Poly, but had it taken from him after James Paris sliced him up.  (PCE)
Martin, Dean – see John Wilkes Booth.

Mason, George – Mason is a white occultist working for the White Lodge who in 1936 was attached to the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition when they went to the Island of Poly’Conia.  Later in life he began training teenagers and people in their 20s how to become fighters of the occult.  In 2004, he dies ?? while closing down the shadow portal in Arundel Castle. (CVE, AC)
Matigan, Randolph – 

Matigan, Victor - 

Mayhew, Father Jacob – member of the Mayhew family of New Orleans, Jacob was transferred to Dover, England to be a priest.  His mother and sister moved there as well.  In 1927, his mother and sister were run over by Richard Isaac Prescott who was drunk at the time.  Jacob vowed vengeance and followed Richard from 1928 to 1929 finally arriving at the PolyCon Express.  There he poisoned and killed Richard.  Feeling guilty he traveled back to England in 1934 where he has been trying to help Cynthia Prescott, Richard’s sister, with her failing marriage.  In 1935 he tried to prevent her husband from running off with a demon, but failed to do so.  (PCE, VL)
McIntyre, Steven / Stevie – McIntyre is the cook on the ship, the Sea Wolf.  In 1936, with the help of the 2nd mate, Vincent Waggoner, he killed the captain while they were transporting an archaeological dig, the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition.  The ship eventually ran into several rocks off the Island of Poly’Conia.  He and Amy Wentworth escaped from the island on a raft made of bamboo.   (CVE)
* Monroe, Marilyn – actress who conceived a child with Bobby Kennedy.  She is accidentally killed by several members of Hollywood who were in the process of stealing the unborn fetus.  (PC) 
Monroe, Victor – see Victor Matigan.  (AC)
Morrison, Angel / Angela – see Gabriel 2. (PN)
Mouat, Louis – a Frenchman who in 1929 holds a large auction to raise money for an art house in Paris. (PCE)
Mulu – Apprentice Shaman to Stro’Bythrck studying under Lulano in 1936. He is considered very gifted and is very connected to the spirit realm. Like the rest of his tribe, he is a cannibal.  (CVE)
Murphy, Heather – see Heather Vozza.

Murphy, Jennifer – 

Nixon, Richard – a member of Priore de Sion and also a slave to the rats of Rodentius Smartamus Maximus.  He is later killed in a 1964 secret meeting of the Illuminati. Shortly after the meeting a new Nixon was seen in public. No one is sure where this Nixon came from.  (PC)
* O’Malley, Officer – Bobby from England who is killed by Zachary Childress in the sixties.  Now haunts Arundel Castle.  (AC)
# The Old Wise Indian – old wise Indian who has been told by the spirits to set the world right.  He was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Oswald, Harvey – genetic Communist super twin to Lee Oswald.  Harvey was one of the shooters in Delaney Plaza in 1963.  (PC)
* Oswald, Lee – genetic Communist super twin to Harvey Oswald.  Lee was one of the shooters in Delaney Plaza in 1963.  He didn’t manage to escape as a result of Jack Ruby not being at the pre-defined pick up point.  Thus he was captured and then later shot by Ruby.  Ruby at the time was under the mind control of Eric Aldrich.  His name was gotten wrong and they thought that he and his brother were the same person, thus Lee Harvey Oswald.  (PC) 
Paris, James – This sick criminal with a penchant for knives is an avid Maltese Poly hunter.  In 1914, he almost shoots the Archduke Francis Ferdinand and in 1927, he carves up Roger Stroud all in his pursuit for the Maltese Poly.  In 1929, he successfully carves up Faysal Markhar only to take possession of a fake version of the Maltese Poly.  (PCE, PN)
Peter, Saint – the original disciple from year 0.  Kept alive for over centuries, Saint Peter has ruled the Catholic Church with an iron hand and has been responsible for or involved with the deaths of several Presidents and other world powers.  (PC)
Peterson, Doctor Alan – the Vozza family doctor.  In 1935 his body is taken over by Michael Vozza Senior.  The body is eventually shot by Francis Carmondy.  (VL) 
Pokorny, Senator Matthew – the Senator of Mississippi.  In the late 20s he was receiving kickbacks from Harriet Rockefeller for awarding her the American wool contract.  Eventually in 1928 Richard Isaac Prescott blackmails him and after an assassination attempt fails, he tracks him down to the PolyCon Express in 1929.  There he brutally stabs Richard, but Harriet Rockefeller poisons him to tie up all the lose ends.  (PCE)
# Piloto, Mel – air plane pilot who was flying the producer and director.  He was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Prescott, Cynthia – sister to Richard Isaac Prescott.  At a young age she married, Michael Vozza, Junior and had a son, Michael Vozza III.  Her husband, however, went over the edge and in 1936 she leaves him.  Of course, at that time he spent most of his time trying to break into the safe that contained the family demon.  She takes her maiden name again, and realizes she is pregnant with another son of Michael Vozza Jr. (VL)
Prescott, Richard Isaac – An avid Maltese Poly hunter who during his life slighted several people.  He finally is both poisoned by Father Jacob Mayhew and stabbed by Matthew Pokorny while aboard the PolyCon Express in 1929.  He was the boyfriend and fiancé of Jacquelyn and was friends with Roger Stroud and Harry Houdini.  Doctor Jennifer Holmstrand was his doctor back in his hometown of Dover.  Richard also met Michelle Bradfield while searching for the Poly on the Titanic.  (PCE)
Prescott, Randy – A descendant of Richard Isaac and also the curator of the NY Museum of Natural History. Grandson of Cynthia Prescott and Michael Vozza Jr.  (AC)
Presley, Elvis – leader of the National Order to Colonize and the King!  Elvis is secretly a Roswellian alien.  (PC)
Ramius, Sergei – a Russian defector, who in 1929 escapes from Russia to the PolyCon Express with the plans for Operation Ocelot.  Although he loses the plans, he does manage to stop the Russian’s assassination attempt.  Without any proof, however, he does not receive asylum in Great Britain.  Use to work for Leon Trotsky.  (PCE)
Rangel, Richard – see Raymond Reagan.

Reagan, Raymond R – British secret agent who makes gadgets for Her Majesty’s Secret Service.  Also goes by “R”.  (PN)
# Richards, Seth – escaped convict from a nearby prison.  He was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Rockefeller, Harriet – rich member of the Rockefeller family, Harriet, was into sheep, steel, and oil in the twenties.  She also acquired a wool contract from Senator Matthew Pokorny.  In 1929 aboard the PolyCon Express, she had the Senator from Mississippi murder Richard Isaac Prescott and than did away with him as well.  Finally, several members of the criminal underworld caught up to her and while threatening her with financial ruin and blackmail, she committed suicide, taking her own poison.  (PCE)
* Röhm, Ernst – former head of the SA.  Theodore Eicke and Volcar Hawke of the SS killed him in June of 1934. (PN)
Rossman, Jamie – a human who was traveling through Nevada in 1957, when she was replaced by a Roswellian alien.  See also Sutliu Feedolu. (NN) 
* Ruby, Jack – a man working for Clay Shaw and supposed pick up man for the assassins in Delaney Plaza, his mind was clouded by the mental control of Eric Aldrich.  Under this mind control, not only did he not pick up the people he was suppose to, he eventually shot Lee Oswald who was in police custody at the time.   (PC) 
Sabatelli, Vito – a mobster that Richard Isaac Prescott in 1928 borrowed money from.  In 1929, he boards the PolyCon Express with the intention of killing Richard, but doesn’t get to him in time. He is also a member of the Gubatosi family. (PCE)
Salitado, Regina - 

Sambacticado, Vince - 

Kris Schultz - 

* Schultz, Heinrich - 

Shaw, Clay –

* Shum’bu’lala – dark god of a cannibalistic tribe on an island in the Caribbean.  (AC)
Sikorsky, Ivana – a Russian NKVD agent who boards the PolyCon Express in 1929 looking for the defector, Sergei Ramius.  In a massive combat Amy Wentworth kills her.  (PCE)
# Simpson, Michael Walker – ghastly wendigo who lives in the mountains preying on the flesh of humans for power.  He was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Sinatra, Frank – 

Sinclair, Mitchell – programmed assassin created by Mr. Guttman using the plans from Operation Ocelot.  (PN)

Smilgonast, Boris – Boris the Back Breaker and NKVD agent.  (PN)
Smith, Professor Dakota – an explorer who travels to the far off corners of the world.  In 1936 he was attached to the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition to the lost Island of Poly’Conia.  (CVE)
Smith, Mackie – Boson in 1936 on the Sea Wolf.  While transporting the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition to the Island of Poly’Conia he becomes a follower of He’Kthlly’ck and with the help of Eugene Ganiere runs the ship into the rocks off the shore of the island.   Eventually, Inuli kills him when he transfers wounds suffered by Andrew Carleth to Mackie Smith.  Since Mackie Smith was not an avatar of a god, the wounds instantly killed him.  (CVE)
Smithe, Joseph – see James Stock.

Sommersby, Heather – see Heather Vozza.  (AC)
Sommersby, Kenneth

Somersby, Larry – a sick, twisted individual that wandered around in the twenties collecting fingers from people who lost bets.  In 1929, he loses his head, literally, when Michael Camaratta shoots it off in retaliation for having his finger cut off earlier.  (PCE)
Sommersby, Marcy – 

Stock, James – 008 – Britain’s best secret agent.  (PN)
Stockwell, Mason - 

* Stro’Bythrck – a dark god, thought to be a sea god.  Several cannibals worship it.  Stro’Bythrck fought a battle with He’Kthlly’ck and won, chaining the evil volcano god in the ocean.  (CVE) 
Stromberg, Professor Marc – an anthropologies attached to the 1936 Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition to the Island of Poly’Conia.  His heart his torn out by Andrew Carleth during a strange ritual involving the volcano.  (CVE)
* Stroud, Roger – an avid Maltese Poly hunter, Roger was left for dead by James Paris after Paris tortured him to find out the current whereabouts of the Maltese Poly.  Stroud was friends with Richard Isaac Prescott, married to Lady Green, and the boyfriend of Amy Wentworth.  (PCE) 
Summers, Melanie - 

Lady Tatyanna - 

Thurman, Strom – A Hormelian alien and politician.  (PC)
Trasker, Simone - 

Valentino, Sam – see Steven Vozza III.

Vandenberg, Alex – once a wealthy financier, Alex lost all of his money funding the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition in 1936.  The expedition crashed on the Island of Poly’Conia and found nothing of monetary value there.  Chambers was his butler, until he could no longer afford to pay him.  (CVE)
VanDross, Katrina – see Anya Grahazni.

Veranda, Maximillian / Maxine – originally the 1st Mate of the good ship, the Sea Wolf, Max became in charge when the ship crashed off the coast of the Island of Poly’Conia.  The ship at the time was taking the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition to the island.  This was in 1936.  (CVE)
Vilakova, Dimitri – NVVD agent and original head of Operation Ocelot.  (PN)
* Vilaktovia – Eastern European demigod.  Is a death god.  (AC)
Von Black, Dietrich – (PN)
Von Matton, Franz – see Wolfgang Wagner.  

Von Nordstein, Helmet – (PN)

Vozza, Cynthia – see Cynthia Prescott.  

* Vozza, Sir Francis – the one time head of the Vozza family, Francis used the family demon to extremely good affect greatly increasing the family’s prosperity and holding.  He had three children, Michael, Jed, and Marie.  (VL) 
Vozza, Heather – Kristian Vozza’s wife.  Originally a member of Clan Murphy, a dark and evil family that moved to America during the Irish Potato Famine.  She was married to Kristian in an arranged wedding to unite the two families and create an unholy descendant. When Kristian Vozza’s body in 1933 was taken over by his father, Michael Vozza, the relationship was strained, as her husband was no longer her husband (not that she knew this).  Becoming dissatisfied, she began having an affair with the family lawyer, Francis Carmondy.  In 1935, when her husband died, she and Francis arranged to have the real will replaced with a fake will awarding her everything.  Her and Francis then went off together, short lived as that affair was. She then married Kenneth Sommersby after getting him to off his wife, Marcy.  She poisoned him and acquired his fortune as well, but then met an untimely end, destroyed by the shadow portal inside Arundel Castle.  She has since wandered the castle as a ghost. (VL, AC)
Vozza, Jed – born in 1858, Jed eventually becomes a crazy old man determined to stay alive forever.  In 1935, he acquires the secret of immortality.   (VL)
Vozza, Kristian – youngest son of Michael Vozza and Shannon La Bue.  He was married to Heather Vozza.  In 1933 his soul is banished from his body and replaced with his father’s.  In 1935, his father while still wearing Kristian’s body ends up in a car accident putting Kristian into a comma.  Kristian’s body eventually dies later that day. (VL) 
Vozza, Marie – see Marie Winston.  

Vozza Junior, Michael– son of Shannon La Bue and Michael Vozza, Senior.  He is a ruthless and cunning individual who murders several family members in 1935, but manages to escape with the locked safe containing the family demon.  (VL)
Vozza Senior, Michael – Former Patriarch of the Vozza Family.  In 1893 he discovers the secret of immortality.  In 1889 he purchases Arundel Castle and crafts a special whistle to control Ari the Sea Serpent.  In 1933, after his body dies in an explosion in one of his factories, he transfers his soul to his youngest son Kristian.  In 1935, when Kristian’s body is damaged in a car accident, he transfers his soul to the family Doctor, Alan Peterson.  While trying to save Kristian’s body and retain control of the family, Francis Carmondy shoots him, but sadly, his soul gets stuck in that of a squirrel.  (VL)
Vozza III, Michael – Michael Jr. and Cynthia Prescott’s son.  (VL)
Vozza, Regina – Middle child amongst Michael, Jr. and Kristian.  The daughter of Shannon and Michael, Senior.  (VL)
Vozza, Samson – son of Kristian and Heather Vozza. (VL)
Vozza, Shannon – daughter of Kristian and Heather Vozza. She is named after her grandmother who died in 1893.  (VL)
* Vozza, Shannon – see Shannon La Bue.

* Vozza, Steven – the son of Michael Vozza and Shannon La Bue Vozza.  He is born in 1893 and promptly fed to the family demon so that Michael Vozza can learn the secret of immortality.  Shannon commits suicide by jumping off the top story of her estate in grief. (VL) 
Vozza III, Steven – conman formerly known as Sam Valentino.  In 1928, he acted as a businessman for a rich eccentric landowner from Beijing.  During this time he created a fake Maltese Poly with the intention of swapping it for the real one, which was in the possession of the landowner.  Sadly Mr. Guttman and James Paris show up and kill the landowner.  So Sam, adopts the name of a young child who dies shortly after being born.  He changes the records and takes on the persona as if the child had never died.  This child was Steven Vozza.  He then boards the PolyCon Express in 1929 with the intention of selling the fake Maltese Poly, which he does.  (PCE, VL)
Waggoner, Vincent – was the 2nd mate on the ship, the Sea Wolf.  In 1936, while attached to the Carleth-Vandenberg Expedition, he became a follower of He’Kthlly’ck and with his other followers, killed the captain and crashed the ship off the coast of the Island of Poly’Conia.  He was killed on the island shortly after by being tossed into the volcano.  (CVE)
Wagner, Wolfgang – hotel manager of a ski resort in Northern Germany.  (PN)
# Walken, Sheriff Jaime – local rookie cop looking for the escaped convict.  He was a fictional creation within Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Wellington, Sir Victor - 

Wentworth, Amy  – an archaeologist with unsavory methods.  Amy is a treasure hunter and has been searching for the Maltese Poly since 1924.  In 1929, she got close to it, when she discovered it on the PolyCon Express.  Sadly, it went missing while she became embroiled in a conflict between several Russian and British agents.  In 1936, she joined an expedition to the Island of Poly’Conia, hoping to find fame and fortune and, of course, the Maltese Poly.  Instead, she fled from the island with Stevie McIntyre in possession of the Pendant of He’Kthlly’ck. (PCE,CVE)
White, Doctor Josiah – psychiatric doctor who runs the asylum, White Mental Institue, where Stephen Kodenburg has been committed.  He has perfected a new technology to project his consciousness inside the mind of his patient.  (EV)
White, Doctor Shelly – Josiah White’s husband.  She works in the White Mental Institute, an asylum, and was written into the world within Stephen Kodenburg’s mind.  (EV)
Winston, Marie – formerly Marie Vozza, Marie married Vic Winston and had children.  In 1928, she kills Vic and makes it look like an accident.  In 1935, while trying to shackle a demon to her, her own son, after discovering the truth, kills her by splitting her head open with a meat cleaver.  (VL)
Winston, Richard – Son of Marie Winston and father to Sally Winston.  In 1935, after discovering that his mother is both insane and responsible for a lot of the tragedy that has befallen the family, he takes a meat cleaver to her head.  (VL)
Winston, Sally – Daughter of Richard Winston who accidentally discovered Shannon La Bue Vozza’s journal.  Kristian in 1933 tried to shut her up by burning down the house she was in.  Her maid dies in the blaze and everyone believes the maid’s burnt body is hers.  Sally adopts the name Jamie Galan and after much make up and costuming begins dating her cousin to infiltrate and bring down the evil Vozza family.  It is rumored that Michael Vozza, Junior kills her when he goes on his rampage through the house.  (VL)
* Winston, Vic – Marie’s poor husband who grew tired of her ranting about how she was going to chain and capture the family demon.  After he told her to shut up, she in 1928 took a meat cleaver to his head.  (VL) 
Witt, Louis – A member of La Cosa Nostra, Witt was the umbrella man in Delaney Plaza in 1963.  He signaled the gunmen, which began the shooting.  (PC)
Wood, Gerald R – an earlier attempt by the Russians to create a perfect assassin.  He went insane and now believes that he has his friend, Roger (a six foot tall invisible Raccoon), along with him. He boarded the PolyCon Express in 1929 trying to sort out his life.  (PCE)

Zippo, Garfield – American FBI counter intelligence agent.  (PN)
